
The City of Durant encourages participation from all its citizens. If participation at any public meeting is 
not possible due to a disability, notification to the City Clerk at least 48 hours prior to the scheduled 

meeting is encouraged in order to make the necessary accommodations. The City of Durant may waive 
the 48-hour rule if interpreters for the deaf (signing) or translation services for limited English proficient 

(LEP) individuals are not the necessary accommodation. 
  

DURANT INDUSTRIAL AUTHORITY 
   
4:00 PM Roscoe J. Hatfield 

Council Chambers, 
300 West Evergreen, 

Durant, Oklahoma 

May 2, 2023 

 AGENDA  
 

 

CALL TO ORDER 
INVOCATION/FLAG SALUTE 
ROLL CALL 
ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 
1.  Consent Items 
   To help streamline meetings and allow the focus to be on other items requiring strategic thought, 

the "Consent Items" portion of the agenda groups the routine, procedural, and self-explanatory non-
controversial items together. These items are voted on in a single motion (one vote). However, any 
Council member requesting further information on a specific item thus removes it from the "Consent 
Items" section for individual attention and separate vote. 

  a. Consider Approval of April 4, 2023 Meeting Minutes 
  

2.  Consider Items Removed from Consent 
  

3.  Information Items 
  a. DIA Directors Report April 2023 
  b. DIA Financial Report April 2023 

  
4.  Administration 
  a. Consider Approval of Small Business Grant Applications   
  b. Consider Approval on Entering a Contract for 

Services with Heather Lisle in the amount of $2,000 
  

5.  Executive Session 
  a. Consider Entering into Executive Session to confer on matters pertaining to 

economic development, including the transfer of property, financing, or the 

Page 1 of 51



creation of a proposal to entice a business to remain or to locate within their 
jurisdiction if public disclosure of the matter discussed would interfere with the 
development of products or services or if public disclosure would violate the 
confidentiality of the business, specifically Project Stone. This Executive 
Session Authorized by Title 25, Section 307 (C)(11) of the Oklahoma State 
Statutes. 
  

  b. Consider Action Pursuant to Item 5. A 
  

  c. Consider Entering into Executive Session to confer on matters pertaining to 
economic development, including the transfer of property, financing, or the 
creation of a proposal to entice a business to remain or to locate within their 
jurisdiction if public disclosure of the matter discussed would interfere with the 
development of products or services or if public disclosure would violate the 
confidentiality of the business, specifically Project 360. This Executive Session 
Authorized by Title 25, Section 307 (C)(11) of the Oklahoma State Statutes. 
  

  d. Consider Action Pursuant to Item 5. c 
  

6.  New Business 
  

ADJOURNMENT 
 

CERTIFICATE 
This is to certify that in conformity with the Oklahoma Open Meeting Act, public notice 
of the date, time and place of this meeting was filed with the City Clerk of Durant on the 
7th day of December, 2022 and that an agenda of said meeting was posted at the 
place of such meeting at 11:00 a.m. on the 28th day of April, 2023. 
 

 
_______________________________________ 
Tamme Collins, City of Durant 
 

Page 2 of 51



  

 Agenda Item: 1.a. 
  
 The City of Durant 
 

 

 
 

Memorandum 
 
Date: 5/2/2023  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Nichole Tucker, Economic Development Director  
Re: Consider Approval of April 4, 2023 Meeting Minutes 

 
 
 

 
 
 
  
Council Information / Action Requested  
 
City Staff Information / Action Follow-up, if Council authorizes this action:  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. DIA 04.04.2023 Agenda Minutes 
 
 

Page 3 of 51



 
 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF DURANT INDUSTRIAL AUTHORITY 
April 4, 2023 AT 4:00 PM, Roscoe J. Hatfield 
Council Chambers, 
300 West Evergreen, 
Durant, Oklahoma 
 

CALL TO ORDER  
Chairman Hammock called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.  
  
INVOCATION/FLAG SALUTE  
Chairman Hammock provided the invocation. 
  
ROLL CALL  
Present: 
Trustee Steve Brittingham 
Trustee Mike Davis 
Trustee Grace Rudolf 
Trustee Jeff Shattuck 
Trustee Cole Walker 
Vice Chairman Rogers* 
Chairman Jeff Hammock 
Advisory Member Tammye Gwin* 
 
*Advisory Member Tammye Gwin arrived at 4:05 p.m. 
*Vice Chairman Rogers arrived at 4:10 p.m. 
 
Absent: 
Advisory Member Thomas Newsom  
 
  
ORDER OF BUSINESS 
   
1.  Consent Items 
   To help streamline meetings and allow the focus to be on other items requiring strategic thought, 

the "Consent Items" portion of the agenda groups the routine, procedural, and self-explanatory non-
controversial items together. These items are voted on in a single motion (one vote). However, any 
Council member requesting further information on a specific item thus removes it from the "Consent 
Items" section for individual attention and separate vote.   

  a. Consider Approval of Regular Meeting Minutes of March 7, 2023 
 
   

Motion was made by Trustee Jeff Shattuck and seconded by Vice Chairman Brett Rogers to 
approve Regular Minutes of March 7, 2023. 
 

Page 4 of 51



Motion Passed with the following vote: 
 
Ayes: Brittingham, Davis, Rudolf, Shattuck, Walker, Rogers, Hammock 
Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
  
2.  Consider Items Removed from Consent 

    
3.  Information Items   
  a. DIA Director's Report March 2023   
  b. Financial Report March 2023   
  c. Final Report UMD Project Closed 

    
4.  Administration   
  a.  

1. Discuss, Consider and Take Action on Award of Bid for Remediation of 68 Waldron 
Road Facility Interior Contamination of DIA-Owned Property to United Manufacturing and 
    Distribution LLC (UMD) in the Amount of $38,740.00;   
 
 
2. Consider Approval of Contract with United Manufacturing and Distribution LLC (UMD) 
for the Remediation of 68 Waldron Road Facility Interior Contamination of DIA-Owned 
Property in the Amount of $38,740.00; 
 
3. Consider Approval of the Expenditure of Economic Development Sales Tax Funds in 
the Amount of $38,740.00 to United Manufacturing and Distribution LLC (UMD) for the 
Remediation of 68 Waldron Road Facility Interior Contamination of DIA-Owned Property   
   

4a-1 Motion was made by Trustee Mike Davis and seconded by Trustee Grace Rudolf 
to approve the Bid for Remediation of 68 Waldron Road Facility Interior Contamination 
of DIA-Owned Property to United Manufacturing and Distribution LLC (UMD) for the 
amount of $38,740.00. 
 
Motion Passed with the following vote: 
 
Ayes: Brittingham, Davis, Rudolf, Shattuck, Walker, Rogers, Hammock 
Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
 
4a-2 Motion was made by Trustee Davis and seconded by Trustee Grace Rudolf to 
approve a Contract with United Manufacturing and Distribution LLC (UMD) for the 
Remediation of 68 Waldron Road Facility Interior Contamination of DIA-Owned 
Property in the amount of $38,740.00. 
 
Motion Passed with the following vote: 

Page 5 of 51



 
Ayes: Brittingham, Davis, Rudolf, Shattuck, Walker, Rogers, Hammock 
Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
 
4a-3 Motion was made by Chairman Jeff Hammock and seconded by Trustee Jeff 
Shattuck to approve the Expediture of Economic Development Sales Tax Funds in the amount of 
$38,740.00 to United Manufacturing and Dstribution LLC (UMD) for the Remediation of 68 Waldron 
Road Facility interior Contamination of DIA-Owned Property.  
 
Motion Passed with the following vote: 
 
Ayes: Brittingham, Davis, Rudolf, Shattuck, Walker, Rogers, Hammock 
Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
  
  b. Discussion, Consideration and Possible Action on Adopting the 2023-24 

Annual Budget   
 
 
Motion was made by Trustee Steve Brittingam and seconded by Trustee Mike Davis to 
approve adopting the 2023-24 Annual Budget. 
 
 
Motion Passed with the following vote: 
 
Ayes: Brittingham, Davis, Rudolf, Shattuck, Walker, Rogers, Hammock 
Nays: None 
Abstain: None  
  c. Consider Approval of Small Business Grant Applications 

   
Motion was made by Trustee Mike Davis and seconded by Trustee Steve Brittingham 
to approve all 4 grant applications under 4c.  
 
Motion Passed with the following vote: 
 
Ayes: Brittingham, Davis, Rudolf, Shattuck, Walker, Rogers, Hammock 
Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
  
5.  Executive Session   
  a. Consider Entering into Executive Session to confer on matters pertaining to economic 

development, including the transfer of property, financing, or the creation of a proposal to 
entice a business to remain or to locate within their jurisdiction if public disclosure of the 

Page 6 of 51



matter discussed would interfere with the development of products or services or if public 
disclosure would violate the confidentiality of the business, specifically Project 360. This 
Executive Session Authorized by Title 25, Section 307 (C)(11) of the Oklahoma State 
Statutes.   

 
Motion was made by Chairman Jeff Hammock and seconded by Trustee Jeff Shattuck 
to go into the Executive session. 
 
 
Motion Passed with the following vote: 
 
Ayes: Brittingham, Davis, Rudolf, Shattuck, Walker, Rogers, Hammock 
Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
 
A motion was made by Chairman Jeff Hammock and seconded by Trustee Jeff 
Shattuck to amend the motion for the Executive session to 5a and 5c.  
Motion Passed with the following vote: 
 
Ayes: Brittingham, Davis, Rudolf, Shattuck, Walker, Rogers, Hammock 
Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
  b. Consider Action Pursuant to Item 5. a  
 
No Action  
  
  c. Consider Entering into Executive Session to confer on matters pertaining to economic 

development, including the transfer of property, financing, or the creation of a proposal to 
entice a business to remain or to locate within their jurisdiction if public disclosure of the 
matter discussed would interfere with the development of products or services or if public 
disclosure would violate the confidentiality of the business, specifically Project Lift. This 
Executive Session Authorized by Title 25, Section 307 (C)(11) of the Oklahoma State 
Statutes.   

 
The motion was made by Chairman Jeff Hammock and seconded by Vice Chairman 
Brett Rogers to reconvene into regular session. 
 
Motion Passed with the following vote: 
 
Ayes: Brittingham, Davis, Rudolf, Shattuck, Walker, Rogers, Hammock 
Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
  
  d. Consider Action Pursuant to Item 5. c 

 

Page 7 of 51



   
The motion was made by Chairman Jeff Hammond and seconded by Trustee Grace 
Rudolf Instructed our Executive Director to enter into a contract, but at the same time 
gather more information on that particular project.  
 
 
Motion Passed with the following vote: 
 
Ayes: Brittingham, Davis, Rudolf, Shattuck, Walker, Rogers, Hammock 
Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
  
6.  New Business 

   
No New Business 
 
  
ADJOURNMENT  
A motion was made by Vice Chairman Brett Rogers and seconded by Trustee Grace 
Rudolf to adjourn 
 
Motion Passed with the following vote: 
 
Ayes: Brittingham, Davis, Rudolf, Shattuck, Walker, Rogers, Hammock 
Nays: None 
Abstain: None 

 

Page 8 of 51



  

 Agenda Item: 3. 
  
 The City of Durant 
 

 

 
 

Memorandum 
 
Date: 5/2/2023  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: 

 

Re: Information Items  
 

 
 
  
Council Information / Action Requested  
 
City Staff Information / Action Follow-up, if Council authorizes this action:  
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 
 

Page 9 of 51



  

 Agenda Item: 3.a. 
  
 The City of Durant 
 

 

 
 

Memorandum 
 
Date: 5/2/2023  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: 

 

Re: DIA Directors Report April 2023  
 

 
 
  
Council Information / Action Requested  
 
City Staff Information / Action Follow-up, if Council authorizes this action:  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Economic Development Report April 2023 
 
 

Page 10 of 51



 Economic Development 
Date:  
 
From:  

RE: 

April 20, 2023   

Nichole Tucker,  Director 

    Economic Development Monthly Report  

Property Updates: 

• SW Pickling – Final report has been submitted. Interior work will begin to dispose of left over 
tanks. 

• Land Purchase Proposal- 20 acres- North Side of Country Club Drive Behind asphalt plant and 

21.86 acres- SW Corner of Country Club Drive and South McLean.

Project Updates: 

• Project Lift – Conversations continue with Project Lift representatives.  Members of KSA

provided a project proposal for possible Airport facility.

• Small Business Boot camp-Boot camp is up and running. Nineteen local small business are

participating. There are three of the boot camp participants who have submitted

applications for the Tech Grant for the month of April.

• Project 360 – Project 360 is a locally owned and operated corporation expansion. Project

360  has an owner investment of 1.5 million and will create 150-200 local jobs with annual

wages at $7,085,000.

• Project Stone- Conversations have began with a local manufacture and distribution center

for expansion and to relocate a Texas location to Durant.

• Project Brain: Conversations continue after a site visit in March.

 Other Activities: 

• Small Business- Four boot camp participants have turned Tech Grant applications.
DIA has awarded ten small businesses with Tech grants for two thousand each.

• Retail Strategies-Retail Strategies and City of Durant began working with two local
developers to work on large box store recruitment.

• Chick-fil-A Food Truck visited Durant Thursday April 20th and plans to visit two
Thursdays a month. Prospects for permanent loaction continue.

Page 11 of 51



  

 Agenda Item: 3.b. 
  
 The City of Durant 
 

 

 
 

Memorandum 
 
Date: 5/2/2023  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Nichole Tucker, Economic Development Director  
Re: DIA Financial Report April 2023 

 
 
 

 
 
 
  
Council Information / Action Requested  
 
City Staff Information / Action Follow-up, if Council authorizes this action:  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. March 2023 DIA & ED Reports (1) 
 
 

Page 12 of 51



Page 13 of 51



Page 14 of 51



Page 15 of 51



Page 16 of 51



Page 17 of 51



Page 18 of 51



Page 19 of 51



Page 20 of 51



Page 21 of 51



Page 22 of 51



Page 23 of 51



Page 24 of 51



Page 25 of 51



Page 26 of 51



Page 27 of 51



Page 28 of 51



  

 Agenda Item: 4. 
  
 The City of Durant 
 

 

 
 

Memorandum 
 
Date: 5/2/2023  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: 

 

Re: Administration  
 

 
 
  
Council Information / Action Requested  
 
City Staff Information / Action Follow-up, if Council authorizes this action:  
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 
 

Page 29 of 51



  

 Agenda Item: 4.a. 
  
 The City of Durant 
 

 

 
 

Memorandum 
 
Date: 5/2/2023  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: 

 

Re: Consider Approval of Small Business Grant Applications  
 
 

 
 
 
  
Council Information / Action Requested  
 
City Staff Information / Action Follow-up, if Council authorizes this action:  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Parish 1807 Grill 
2. La Gruta 
3. Cactus Gypsies 
4. Blakes Coffee 
 
 

Page 30 of 51



Page 31 of 51



Page 32 of 51



Page 33 of 51



Page 34 of 51



Page 35 of 51



Page 36 of 51



Page 37 of 51



Page 38 of 51



Page 39 of 51



Page 40 of 51



Page 41 of 51



Page 42 of 51



Page 43 of 51



Page 44 of 51



  

 Agenda Item: 4.b. 
  
 The City of Durant 
 

 

 
 

Memorandum 
 
Date: 5/2/2023  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Nichole Tucker, Economic Development Director  
Re: Consider Approval on Entering a Contract for 

Services with Heather Lisle in the amount of $2,000 
 
 
 

 
 
 
  
Council Information / Action Requested  
 
City Staff Information / Action Follow-up, if Council authorizes this action:  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. City of Durant Contract-Heather Lisle Co 032723 
 
 

Page 45 of 51



Page 46 of 51



Page 47 of 51



  

 Agenda Item: 5.a. 
  
 The City of Durant 
 

 

 
 

Memorandum 
 
Date: 5/2/2023  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Nichole Tucker, Economic Development Director  
Re: Consider Entering into Executive Session to confer on matters pertaining to economic 

development, including the transfer of property, financing, or the creation of a proposal to entice 
a business to remain or to locate within their jurisdiction if public disclosure of the matter 
discussed would interfere with the development of products or services or if public disclosure 
would violate the confidentiality of the business, specifically Project Stone. This Executive 
Session Authorized by Title 25, Section 307 (C)(11) of the Oklahoma State Statutes. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
  
Council Information / Action Requested  
 
City Staff Information / Action Follow-up, if Council authorizes this action:  
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 
 

Page 48 of 51



  

 Agenda Item: 5.b. 
  
 The City of Durant 
 

 

 
 

Memorandum 
 
Date: 5/2/2023  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Nichole Tucker, Economic Development Director  
Re: Consider Action Pursuant to Item 5. A 

 
 
 

 
 
 
  
Council Information / Action Requested  
 
City Staff Information / Action Follow-up, if Council authorizes this action:  
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 
 

Page 49 of 51



  

 Agenda Item: 5.c. 
  
 The City of Durant 
 

 

 
 

Memorandum 
 
Date: 5/2/2023  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Nichole Tucker, Economic Development Director  
Re: Consider Entering into Executive Session to confer on matters pertaining to economic 

development, including the transfer of property, financing, or the creation of a proposal to entice 
a business to remain or to locate within their jurisdiction if public disclosure of the matter 
discussed would interfere with the development of products or services or if public disclosure 
would violate the confidentiality of the business, specifically Project 360. This Executive Session 
Authorized by Title 25, Section 307 (C)(11) of the Oklahoma State Statutes. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
  
Council Information / Action Requested  
 
City Staff Information / Action Follow-up, if Council authorizes this action:  
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 
 

Page 50 of 51



  

 Agenda Item: 5.d. 
  
 The City of Durant 
 

 

 
 

Memorandum 
 
Date: 5/2/2023  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Nichole Tucker, Economic Development Director  
Re: Consider Action Pursuant to Item 5. c 

 
 
 

 
 
 
  
Council Information / Action Requested  
 
City Staff Information / Action Follow-up, if Council authorizes this action:  
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
 
 

Page 51 of 51


	 CALL TO ORDER
	 INVOCATION/FLAG SALUTE
	 ROLL CALL
	 ORDER OF BUSINESS
	1. Consent Items
	a. Consider Approval of April 4, 2023 Meeting Minutes
	Memorandum
	DIA 04.04.2023 Agenda Minutes


	2. Consider Items Removed from Consent
	3. Information Items
	Memorandum
	a. DIA Directors Report April 2023
	Memorandum
	Economic Development  Report April  2023

	b. DIA Financial Report April 2023
	Memorandum
	March 2023 DIA & ED Reports (1)


	4. Administration
	Memorandum
	a. Consider Approval of Small Business Grant Applicat
	Memorandum
	Parish 1807 Grill
	La Gruta
	Cactus Gypsies
	Blakes Coffee

	b. Consider Approval on Entering a Contract forServic
	Memorandum
	City of Durant Contract-Heather Lisle Co 032723


	5. Executive Session
	a. Consider Entering into Executive Session to confer
	Memorandum

	b. Consider Action Pursuant to Item 5. A
	Memorandum

	c. Consider Entering into Executive Session to confer
	Memorandum

	d. Consider Action Pursuant to Item 5. c
	Memorandum


	6. New Business

	 ADJOURNMENT



